
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best                   Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner           Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, June 22, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Petralanda 
 

Salute to the Flag: Audience Participation  
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Yard of the Month Award – July 2015 – 1251 Quail Avenue – Odalis Martin 
 
 B) Promotion of Sgt. Jimmy E. Deal to the rank of Lieutenant of Police 

 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) June 8, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None 

 
7. Public Hearings: None 
   
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
  
 A)  Recommendation by Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a 
purchase order to Patterson Pope Space Saver, utilizing Florida State Contract #56121000-15-1, 
in an amount not to exceed $13,789.90 for the purchase of a new Evidence Locker System, as 
funds are available in the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 B) Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the issuance of a purchase order 
to Howard’s Fertilizer & Chemical, utilizing Town of Davie Bid #B-14-25, on an “as needed basis” 
in the amount of $11,000.00, for custom pre-emergent fertilizer blends as funds were approved in 
the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 

REVISED  



 C)  Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Acushnet, as a 
sole source provider, on an “as needed basis” in the amount of $10,000.00, for golf merchandise 
in our golf shop at the clubhouse as funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to 
Section 31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 
 D) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to Woodys West 
End Tavern in the amount of $990.00, for the May 29th Police Appreciation Dinner as funds were 
approved in the FY 14/15 Budget 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B)  Appointment of five members to the Ad Hoc Art in Public Places Committee for the 

Aquatic Facility 
  
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Approval of proposed letter of intent with Crown Castle for an extension of the 
existing cell tower lease agreement in Hook Square 
 
 B)  Approval of the Second Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for County 
Solid Waste Management System between Miami-Dade County and Miami Springs 
 
 C) Recommendation by Recreation that Council approve an expenditure to Superior 
Park System, Inc. the lowest responsible quote, in an amount not to exceed $27,332.00, for the 
repairs and resurface of tennis courts as funds were designated by Council in the designated 
fund balance for FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code 
  
 D) Recommendation by Finance that Council authorize the execution of a one year 
contract beginning July 1, 2015 with Southern Waste Systems (SWS) with an option to renew 
three additional one year terms for garbage collection and disposal services citywide utilizing 
Miami-Dade County contract #6938-2/22 
 
 E) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council approve an expenditure in the 
amount of $8,400.00, to fund the Tai Chi and Yoga/Fitness workout programs from July 1 thru 
September 30, 2016 as funds were designated by Council in their fund balance designations for 
FY2015 
  
 F) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council approve an expenditure in the 
amount of $3,500.00 to fund Home Delivered Weekend Meals from July 1 thru September 30, 
2016, using funds from General fund balance 
 
 G) Recommendation by Elderly Services that Council authorize a two month extension 
for the period of August 1 – September 30, 2015 of our current food catering subcontractor (in 
order to insure the continued provision of Home Delivered and Congregate Meals until a new 
subcontract can be executed) with Greater Miami Caterers, Inc., using Older Americans Act and 
Nutrition Services Incentive Program funding, as well as Local Services Program funding if 
awarded  
  



 H) Councilwoman Buckner’s request for City Reimbursement to her in the amount of 
$1,750.00 for the Good Government Initiative Leaders of Excellence Class V, to be paid out of 
Council’s Training and Education account 
 
 I) Authorization for the execution of the settlement agreement between Curtiss 
Mansion, Inc. and R.J. Heisenbottle Architects, P.A., Douglas Wood Associates, Inc. and Carivon 
Constrution Company for the repair project at the Curtiss Mansion 
 
 J) Authorization for the execution of the multi-party agreement for the design & 
construction of the repairs to the Curtiss Mansion 
  
11. Other Business:  
 
 A) Discussion on the approved “Florida Room” construction by Miami-Dade County 
(construction material is the primary issue) 
  
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 

corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 
decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 



 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Odalis Martin 
 

Of 
 

1251 Quail Avenue 
 

for their home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
July 2015 

 
Presented this 22nd day of June, 2015. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 

       City Clerk 





 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 8, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 8:05 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Chief of Police Armando A. Guzman 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
Deputy City Clerk Elora R. Sakal 
 
2. Invocation: Mayor Garcia 
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 

A) Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Terry Alexander, 2015 Patricia 
Behring Teacher of the Year Recipient 
 
Mayor Garcia presented the Certificate of Recognition to Ms. Terry Alexander. 
  

B) Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Aiden Marin in recognition of 
being the highest ranked accelerated reader in his class 
 
Mayor Garcia presented the Certificate of Recognition to Aiden Marin.  
 
4. Open Forum: None at this time. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) May 27, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
 



 
 2 

Vice Mayor Best moved to approve.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: 

 
Board of Appeals – Case # 01-V-15 

Beatriz Marta Angelucci – 372 Payne Drive 
Zoning: R1-C 

Lot Size: 12,025 sq. ft. 
 

Applicant is seeking an after-the-fact variance from Section 150-043 to retain a pergola 
with an outdoor kitchen located in the required side yard setback as follows: 
 
1. Requests variance from Section 150-043 (E)(1) to waive 5’11” of the minimum required 
side yard setback of 6’6”. (Side yard setback of 7” proposed) 
 
The Council sat as the Board of Appeals at 7:12 p.m.  The Mayor reconvened the City 
Council meeting at 8:04 p.m. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 

 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  
 
 A)  Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for May 2015 in the Amount of $12,325.50 
 
 B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 
Purchase Order to Nortrax, Inc., utilizing a cooperative purchase with the Florida Sheriff’s 
Association contract #14-12-0904, in an amount not to exceed $45,526.00, for a John 
Deere Backhoe as funds are available, half from the CITT fund and Half from the 
stormwater fund, in the FY 14/15 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 C) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to 
Jumping Jack Productions in the amount of $1,500.00, for the July 4th Classic Car show as 
funds were approved in the FY 14/15 Budget 
 
Vice Mayor Best moved to approve consent agenda items 8A, 8B, and 8C.  
Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, 
Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
There were no appointments at this time. 

 
 



 
 3 

B) Presentation and Discussion of Golf Cart Suitability Study on City streets by 
Joseph Corradino 
 
Joseph Corradino, of the Corradino Group, provided a PowerPoint and oral presentation on 
the Golf Cart study. 
 
After the presentation, the Council discussed the difference between current State 
requirements versus the proposed program that the City would consider.  The Council 
requested for more information and answers to several inquiries offered during the 
presentation. 
 
The Mayor opened the item for public comment, the following members of the public 
spoke: Nery Owens, 169 Corydon Drive; William Drew, 1261 Meadowlark Lane. 

 
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 113-04, Business Taxes-
Schedule Of Fees, By Providing A Five (5%) Percent Increase In The Cost Of All City 
Business Taxes; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective 
Date (Deferred from May 27, 2015 Council Meeting) 
 
City Attorney Seiden read the Ordinance by title. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to not approve the ordinance on first reading. Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion which failed 2-3 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting No; 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner voting Yes. 
 
Councilman Petralanda requested to correct his vote to Yes in order to clarify for the 
record.  The final vote was carried 3-2 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda voting Yes; Vice 
Mayor Best and Mayor Garcia voting No.  
 
 B) Recommendation that the City renew its facility agreement with Jazzercise, 
Inc., for the use of the Multi-Purpose Room at the Community Center for exercise sessions 
(Deferred from May 27, 2015 Council Meeting) 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the agreement. Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 C) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an expenditure to 
FPL, AT&T, Comcast, and resident of 640 Curtiss Parkway, as a sole source provider, in 
an amount not to exceed $34,974.55. The cost breakdown is FPL $21,840.00, AT&T 
$8,563.54, Comcast $571.01 and $4,000.00 to the resident for the finishing of construction 
to the barrier wall.  The utility pole is creating an obstruction due to recent construction in 
the area, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code  



 
 4 

 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the recommendation. Vice Mayor Best seconded 
the motion which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Best, Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 D) Designation of one official to be the voting delegate for the Florida League of 
Cities Legislative Session 
 
 
Councilman Petralanda moved to nominate Councilwoman Buckner as the 
designated member and if the Councilwoman becomes unavailable any other 
member can be designated in her place. Councilman Bain seconded the motion 
which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
11. Other Business:  There was none at this time. 

 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Seiden updated the Council on a series of motions set forth from the Suco 
versus the City.  He explained that the judge dismissed the case with prejudice meaning 
that Mr. Suco could request a rehearing or refile his complaint.  He also stated that Mr. 
Suco chose to file a rehearing from the judge to reconsider the dismissal; a date has not 
been set. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Alonso had no further comments. 
  

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Petralanda requested an update on the budget process.   
 
Councilwoman Buckner thanked the public for coming to the meeting this evening. 
 
Vice Mayor Best recognized Terry Alexander’s achievements and thanked the City for 
acknowledging her.  He also thanked Carol Foster for her efforts for the CMI   
 
Councilman Bain spoke on the Golf Cart issue and stated that the best interest in for the 
City.  He is determined to getting the issue resolved where everyone is happy.  He thanked 
everyone for coming out to the meeting. 
 
Mayor Garcia reminded the Council that they should always speak to staff for information 
and to ask questions from staff so that Council has all the information to make decisions at 
a Council meeting. 
 
 
 
 



 
 5 

13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:16 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 22nd day of June, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 







































    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  May 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia Juan Molina  04-30-2015 01-29-2015 01-29-2015 
Vice Mayor Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2015 01-28-2013 01-28-2013 
Councilman Bain   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Bill Tallman  04-30-2016 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2014 12-14-1998 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  VACANT  10-31-2015   
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2014  08-27-2012 10-08-2012 
Vice Mayor Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2014  01-14-2013 01-14-2013 
Councilman Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2014  02-27-2012 02-27-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2014  08-27-2012 11-19-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2014  10-10-2011 10-08-2012 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2014  08-27-2012 08-27-2012 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Vice Mayor Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2015  03-02-2005 09-24-2012 
Councilman Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2014  09-23-2002 09-10-2012 
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2014  09-25-2006 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2015  06-09-2003 11-19-2012   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2015   
Vice Mayor Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2014 05-08-2009 04-23-2012 
Councilman Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Vice Mayor Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Councilman Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2015 01-12-2009 04-09-2012 
Vice Mayor Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2015 10-28-2013 10-28-2013  
Councilman Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Marielys Acosta  04-30-2016 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Steve Owens  04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2015 02-17-2015 02-17-2015 
Vice Mayor Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2015 04-27-2015 04-27-2015 
Councilman Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2015 06-13-2011 06-13-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2015 02-05-2015 02-05-2015 
Councilman Petralanda   Kim Werner  05-31-2015 05-13-2013 05-13-2013 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2015 04-12-2010 09-26-2011 
Vice Mayor Best   Mark Safreed  07-30-2015 08-08-2005 06-27-2011 
Councilman Bain   George Heider  07-31-2015 08-13-2001 06-27-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2015 10-10-2011 10-10-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2015 03-11-2013 03-11-2013 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2016 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Vice Mayor Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2015 03-08-2004 03-26-2012 
Councilman Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2015 06-09-2014 06-09-2014 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2016 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2015 02-13-1989 04-09-2012 
Vice Mayor Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2015 04-27-2006 04-09-2012 
Councilman Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2015 08-08-2011 04-09-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Vice Mayor Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Councilman Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   VACANT  04-30-2015  
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 

















Page 1       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY AND CONTRACT CITIES FOR USE OF THE COUNTY 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
This Interlocal Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this _____ day of 
_________________, 20      , by and between Miami-Dade County by and through its Board 
of County Commissioners ("County") and Miami Springs by and through its Council 
hereinafter referred to as Contract City, to provide for use of the County Solid Waste 
Management System by the Contract City for its municipal solid waste disposal and 
transfer needs.                                                     
 

BACKGROUND RECITALS 
 
 Whereas, the Miami-Dade County Board of County  Commissioners (the "Board") 
hereby finds and declares that it is necessary to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens 
of Miami-Dade County to provide for municipal solid waste disposal and management 
facilities and services; and 
 
 Whereas, the County desires to maximize the use of its Resources Recovery facility 
processes and to extend the life of its landfills; and 
 
 Whereas, the Contract City desires to use the County Solid Waste Management 
System for its  municipal solid waste disposal needs (and transfer needs, as applicable), at an 
agreed-upon disposal fee rate (and transfer fee rate as applicable); and 
 
 Whereas, the Contract City desires to  use the County Solid Waste Management 
System to satisfy Concurrency requirements of the Local Government Comprehensive 
Planning and Land  Development Regulation Act (Chapter 163, Part II, F.S.) only as it 
applies to  disposal capacity for  municipal solid waste  the  Contract City collects for 
disposal and which is committed to the County for disposal in the County Solid Waste 
Management System in accordance with this Agreement, and actually disposed of therein; 
and 
 
 Whereas, the County and the Contract City desire to formalize their relationship 
regarding municipal solid waste disposal responsibilities consistent with the provisions of 
Section 403.706, Florida Statutes. 
  
 Whereas, the amended agreement as stated herein shall be available to all 
municipalities.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, and the mutual 
considerations contained herein, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, do hereby 
agree as follows: 
 



Page 2       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

 
DEFINITIONS  

 
For the purposes of this Agreement, the following capitalized words and phrases shall be 
given the following respective meanings:   
 
Board - the Miami-Dade County Board of County Commissioners.     
               
Change in Law - after the date of execution of this Agreement, (a) the adoption, 
promulgation, issuance, modification, or change in interpretation of any federal, state or 
local law, regulation, rule, requirement, ruling or ordinance, of the United States or any state 
or territory thereof, unless (i) such law, regulation, rule, requirement, ruling or ordinance 
was on or prior to such date duly adopted, promulgated, issued or otherwise officially 
modified or changed in interpretation, in each case in final form, to become effective 
without any further action by any governmental entity or official having jurisdiction, 
(provided, that it shall not constitute a Change in Law if an administrative regulation existed 
on the date of execution of this Agreement in temporary or proposed form and was treated 
as generally applicable to transactions of the type contemplated hereby), or (ii) compliance 
with such law, regulation, rule requirement, ruling or ordinance was provided for in the 
Agreement; (b) the issuance of an order and/or judgment of any governmental entity or 
official having jurisdiction, to the extent such order and/or judgment constitutes a reversal of 
a prior applicable order and/or judgment, or an overturning of prior administrative policy or 
judicial precedent; or (c) the suspension, termination, interruption or failure of  renewal of 
any permit, license, consent, authorization or approval essential to the acquisition, design, 
construction, equipping, start-up, operation, ownership or possession of the County Solid 
Waste Management System facilities or the facilities sites, to the extent such suspension, 
termination, interruption or failure of renewal is not caused by any action or inaction of the 
County or its contractors (provided that, for the purposes of determining whether a 
suspension, termination, interruption or failure of renewal was so caused, any reason or 
finding set forth in writing by the agency responsible for issuance of such permit,  license, 
consent, authorization or approval shall be accorded the rebuttal presumption of accuracy), 
provided that no change in tax law, change to the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 effected by 
the Tax Reform Act  of 1986 (to the extent applicable on the date of this Agreement), 
change in foreign law, change in law which adversely affects the County's legal rights as a 
licensee, grantee, owner, or user of any patent or other "know-how" in respect of proprietary 
technology intended to be utilized by it in performing its obligations under this Agreement 
shall constitute a change in law for any purposes of this Agreement. 
 
Concurrency - provision of certain public facilities specified in the State of Florida Local 
Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act ("the Act") 
(specifically, Chapter 163, Part II, Section 163.3180 F.S.) by (a) county (ies), or (a) 
municipality (ies) or a combination thereof, at a specified level-of-service stated in the 
Capital Improvements Element of the comprehensive plan for the applicable jurisdiction(s), 
adopted pursuant to the Act.   



Page 3       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

 
Contract  Cities   – a  municipal corporation or corporations existing under the laws of the 
State of Florida,  that enter into this Agreement with the County. For the purpose of this 
Agreement, the unincorporated areas of Miami-Dade County as geographically configured 
on February 16, 1996 shall be considered a Contract City. 
 
County – Miami-Dade County, Florida by and through its Board of County Commissioners.  
 
County Disposal Fee - the fee charged to dispose of municipal solid waste or solid waste at 
County-owned disposal facilities or facilities operated under contract with the County for 
municipal solid waste or solid waste disposal. 
 
County Solid Waste Management  System - The aggregate of those solid waste 
management facilities owned by or operated under contract with Miami-Dade County, 
which shall include the North Dade Landfill (21500 NW 47th Avenue), South Dade Landfill 
(23707 SW 97th Avenue), Resources Recovery Facility (6990 NW 97th Avenue), Waste 
Management of Florida, Inc. Landfill in the City of Medley, Florida (9350 NW 89th 
Avenue), Northeast Transfer Station (18701 NE 6th Avenue), Central Transfer Station (1150 
NW 20th Street) and West Transfer Station (2900 SW 72nd Avenue), and other such facilities 
as may be added to or deleted from this listing from time to time, by the County Mayor  at 
his/her sole discretion.  Such additions or deletions may be made by use of an attachment 
hereto without need for formal amendment to this Agreement. 
 
Director - the Director of the Public Works and Waste Management Department or his/her 
designee.             
 
Exclusive Franchise or License - (a) contract(s) between a Contract City and a (limited 
number of) third party contractor(s) for the right and privilege to collect municipal solid 
waste or solid waste from either residential units or commercial establishments, or both 
residential units and commercial establishments, within (a) designated service area(s) under 
the terms of which the contractor(s) pay(s) the Contract City a fee. 
 
Fiscal Year - the period beginning October 1 of each year and ending September 30 of the 
subsequent year.  
 
Force Majeure  - an act of God, epidemic, lightning, earthquake, fire, explosion, storm, 
tornado, hurricane, flood or similar occurrence, strike, and act of a public enemy, or 
blockade, insurrection, riot, general arrest or restraint of government and people, civil 
disturbance or similar occurrence, which has had or may reasonably be expected to have a 
material adverse effect on the rights or obligations under this Agreement, which by the 
exercise of due diligence the party relying thereon as justification for not performing any 
obligation under this Agreement shall not have been able to avoid, and which is not the 
result of a willful or negligent action or omission of such party. 
      



Page 4       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

 
Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) –  all discarded materials or substances, exclusive of 
source-separated recyclable materials, which the  Contract City collects for disposal or is 
collected for it by third parties under contract with the Contract City for disposal including, 
but not limited to, garbage, trash, litter, refuse, rubbish, ashes, incinerator residue, recycling 
process residue, or other materials allowed by the State Department of Environmental 
Protection for disposal in a Class I landfill which result from domestic, commercial, 
industrial, mining, agricultural or governmental activities, but not including sewage or other 
highly-diluted, water-carried materials or substances, or those in gaseous form. This 
definition is not intended to include any waste collected by any entity whose sole 
relationship with the Contract City is a franchise or license and which entity does not collect 
any waste on behalf of the Contract City. In addition, this definition is not intended to 
include waste collected at any city owned facility. 
 
Non-Exclusive Franchise or License - a regulatory program under which an unlimited 
number of  solid waste haulers are given the right and privilege to collect solid waste from 
either residential units or commercial establishments, or both residential units and 
commercial establishments, under the terms of which each hauler pays the Contract City a 
fee.  
 
Short -Term Disposal - delivery of solid waste to the County Solid Waste Management 
System for disposal without having a minimum ten (10) year waste disposal agreement with 
the County. 
 
Short -Term Disposal Fee(s) - the higher fee(s) paid by private haulers or municipalities 
for Short-Term disposal of solid waste in the County Solid Waste Management System.  
 
Solid Waste – all discarded materials or substances, exclusive of source-separated 
recyclable materials, including, but not limited to, garbage, trash, litter, refuse, rubbish, 
ashes, incinerator residue, recycling process residue, or other materials allowed by the State 
Department of Environmental Protection for disposal in a Class I landfill which result from 
domestic, commercial, industrial, mining, agricultural or governmental activities, but not 
including sewage or other highly-diluted, water-carried materials or substances, or those in 
gaseous form, which materials or substances are not collected by or on behalf of a Contract 
City.  
 
Source-Separated Recyclable Materials - materials separated from municipal solid waste 
or solid waste at their source of generation which are set-out for collection at their source of 
generation. Such materials shall be limited to: clean yard trash, aseptic and gable-top 
containers, corrugated cardboard, magazines, mixed waste paper, newspapers, telephone 
books, household batteries, glass containers, plastic containers, steel cans and aluminum 
cans, and other source-separated recyclable materials as may be approved for addition to this 
listing from time to time by the County Mayor  or his/her designee, which approval shall not 



Page 5       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

be unreasonably withheld; such additions  may be made by use of an attachment hereto 
without need for formal amendment to this Agreement. 
 
Transfer Fee - the fee charged to transfer municipal solid waste or solid waste from County 
Solid Waste Management System transfer stations to County Solid Waste Management 
System disposal facilities. 
 

ARTICLE 1  
 CONSTRUCTION OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

The word "shall" as used in this Agreement shall in all cases be construed to be mandatory 
and to require the action so modified by the word "shall" to be taken without regard to the 
exercise of discretion. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNTY 
A. Provision of Disposal Capacity. The County shall provide MSW disposal capacity (and 
transfer, as applicable) for the MSW which each Contract City collects or is collected for it 
for disposal  and which is committed to the County for disposal in the County Solid Waste 
Management System in accordance with this Agreement. The provision of MSW disposal 
services under this Agreement shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws. 
 
B. Disposal Capacity for Concurrency. The County shall maintain sufficient MSW 
disposal capacity in the County Solid Waste Management System to comply with 
Concurrency requirements of the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land  
Development Regulation Act (Chapter 163, Part II, F.S.) only as it applies to  MSW  
disposal capacity for the MSW   which the   Contract City collects or is collected for it  for 
disposal and which is committed to the County for disposal in the County Solid Waste 
Management System in accordance with this Agreement, and actually disposed of therein.   
  
C.  Standardization of Agreement.  The terms of this Agreement shall be substantially the 
same for all Contract Cities. 
 

ARTICLE 3 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACT CITY 

A. Delivery of MSW to County.  The Contract City shall deliver all the MSW it collects 
or is collected for it for disposal, to a County Solid Waste Management System facility(ies) 
at Disposal Fee rates as specified herein. Delivery of MSW  by Contract City to the Waste 
Management Inc. of Florida landfill in Medley, Florida shall be permitted for the term of 
this agreement; provided that, (1) the County's agreement with Waste Management Inc. of 
Florida, dated July 31, 1998, is in effect, (2) the landfill is accepting MSW for disposal, and 
(3) MSW from (a) Contract City(ies) is not needed at the Resources Recovery facility, as 
determined by the Director, in his/her sole discretion. 
 



Page 6       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

The Director may identify particular facilities to which the Contract City shall deliver its 
MSW subject to the following: 
 

(i) The Contract City may deliver its MSW to a County transfer facility(ies)  if the 
applicable transfer fee is paid to the County.  
 

(ii) At no time during the term of this Agreement shall a Contract City be required 
to deliver MSW to a County transfer facility unless the County Disposal Fee is 
the same at all County Solid Waste Management System facilities. 

 
(iii) The Contract City shall not be directed to deliver its MSW to a disposal facility 

which is farther from the Contract City's boundaries than the closest county-
owned disposal facility.  

 
       (iv) The Contract City shall not be directed to deliver its MSW to a transfer facility 

which is farther from the Contract City's boundaries than the closest county-
owned transfer facility. In no case shall the Contract City be required to deliver 
its MSW to a County Solid Waste Management System facility which is farther 
than twenty (20) miles from the Contract City's nearest boundary in order to 
take full advantage of it rights under this Agreement. 

  
      (v) Regardless of the operating status of the County’s Resources Recovery Facility, 

the Contract City shall be entitled to dispose of MSW at the Facility and to pay 
the regular disposal rate that applies to Contract Cities, which shall be the 
County’s lowest rate for MSW disposal, for the term of this Agreement. 

 
B. Use of Other Facilities Prohibited.  The Contract City shall not deliver any MSW it 
collects or is collected for it for disposal to a solid waste disposal or transfer facility other 
than a County Solid Waste Management System facility for the term of this Agreement.  
The Contract City shall not deliver any MSW it collects or is collected for it, to a materials 
recovery or recycling facility for the term of this Agreement.  
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the County approves an operating permit 
for a solid waste disposal or transfer facility located within Miami-Dade County: 
 
Other than: 
 

(i) A facility that is a part of the County Solid Waste Management System; 
 

(ii) A facility that is used exclusively to facilitate the delivery of MSW to County 
Solid Waste Management System facilities; or 

 



Page 7       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

(iii) A facility that is subject to a solid waste disposal agreement with the County, 
which agreement shall not allow acceptance of third party waste either by 
agreement or regulation;  

 
Then in that case: 

 
the Contract City shall have the option to either pursue a permit for operation of a solid 
waste disposal or transfer facility for all or a portion of its MSW disposal needs or deliver all 
or a portion of its MSW to the permitted solid waste disposal or transfer facility(ies) that 
meets the criteria established herein, provided however that any portion of the Contract 
City’s MSW that is not so disposed must continue to be delivered to the County pursuant to 
the terms of this Agreement. 
 
C. Hauler Contracts.  The Contract City shall include in any MSW collection contracts 
with Solid Waste haulers, or amendments to such contracts, which it executes, renews or 
extends after the date of this Agreement, a provision that all MSW collected for the 
Contract City shall be delivered to a County Solid Waste Management System facility for 
disposal. This provision shall apply to exclusive franchise or license agreements with Solid 
Waste haulers to collect MSW on the Contract City’s behalf.  This provision shall not 
apply to a non-exclusive franchise or license to haul Solid Waste that is not collected on the 
Contract City’s behalf. 
 
D. Disposal and Transfer Fees.  The Contract City shall pay a Disposal Fee (and a 
Transfer Fee, as applicable) for each ton of MSW delivered to the County Solid Waste 
Management System for disposal. As of October 1, 2012, the Contract City shall pay a 
Disposal Fee of sixty-three dollars and sixty-five cents ($63.65) per ton to the County for 
disposal of MSW delivered to County Solid Waste Management System facilities. This 
Disposal Fee shall be established by separate administrative order, which shall not become 
effective until approved by the Board. As applicable, as of October 1, 2012 the Contract 
City shall pay a Transfer Fee of twelve dollars and fifty-two cents ($12.52) per ton to the 
County for transfer of MSW delivered to County Solid Waste Management System transfer 
facilities. This Transfer Fee shall be established by separate administrative order, which 
shall not become effective until approved by the Board.  The Disposal Fee and Transfer Fee 
may be increased or decreased for inflation or deflation beginning on October 1, 2013, and 
on the first day of each Fiscal Year thereafter, relative to increases or decreases in the U.S. 
Government Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers for the Southeast Region of 
the United States (CPI) for the prior period of July 1 through June 30. Such CPI increases or 
decreases shall be capped at four percent (4%) per year for the term of this Agreement.  In 
the event that the actual CPI increase or decrease exceeds the four percent (4%) cap in a 
given Fiscal Year, the amount of CPI increase or decrease above or below the four percent 
(4%) cap shall be applied to CPI increases or decreases in future years when the CPI 
increase or decrease is less than four percent (4%). The Disposal Fee and Transfer Fee shall 
not otherwise increase, unless as required by Change in Law, as defined herein, which may 
occur at any time during the term of this Agreement.  The County shall notify the Contract 



Page 8       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

City of proposed Disposal Fee and Transfer Fee adjustments on the basis of change in law. 
The disposal fee or Transfer Fee increase based on Change in Law shall fully compensate 
the County for its increased costs. Each Contract City shall pay prevailing disposal fees for 
waste materials for which the County charges other than the County Disposal Fee for the 
entire term of this Agreement, including, without limitation, tires and asbestos,  if provided 
to the County for disposal. 
 
E. Terms of Payment. The County shall invoice the Contract City for Disposal Fees, 
based on County weighing records, by means of  First Class U.S. Mail, within  five (5) days 
of the last day of each month, commencing in the first month after the effective date of this 
Agreement, and continuing monthly thereafter for the term of this Agreement. In 
accordance with Section 218.74(2), Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, payment 
of Disposal Fees owed to the County shall be due from, and payment shall be made by, the 
Contract City forty-five (45) days from the date of receipt of the County's monthly 
invoice.  
 
F. Dispute on Invoicing.  In the event of a dispute on invoicing, the Contract City  shall 
first pay the full amount of the disputed charges when due and shall, within thirty (30) days 
from the date of receipt of the disputed invoice, give written notice of the disputed invoice to 
the County. The notice of dispute shall identify the disputed invoice, state the amount in 
dispute and set forth a full statement of grounds on which such dispute is based. The County 
Mayor  or his/her designee shall confer with the Contract City and the County Mayor  or 
his/her designee shall resolve the dispute not later than sixty (60) days after the date upon 
which the disputed invoice was received. Should the Contract City disagree with the 
determination of the County Mayor or his/her designee, it may pursue any remedy at law 
except withholding payment. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
WEIGHING  RECORDS 

The County shall cause all County Solid Waste Management System facilities to operate 
and maintain motor truck scales calibrated to the accuracy required by Florida law and to 
weigh all vehicles delivering MSW.  Each vehicle delivering MSW from the Contract City, 
or its contract hauler, shall have its tare weight and cubic yard capacity permanently and 
conspicuously displayed on the exterior of the vehicle. The County or its contractor may, 
from time to time, require revalidation of the tare weight of any vehicle.  The Contract City 
shall provide the County with information about each private hauler delivering MSW on its 
behalf to include: name and address, make, body type and motor vehicle registration number 
of each vehicle used for such purpose. All such haulers shall have and maintain a valid 
County solid waste hauler permit in accordance with Section 15-17 of the Code of Miami-
Dade County, as amended from time to time.   
 
The County will supply the Contract City with monthly weighing records as may be 
reasonably required by the Contract City to administer its waste collection program. Copies 



Page 9       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

of all transaction tickets will be maintained by the County for at least two (2) years. If 
weighing scales are inoperable or are being tested, the facility operator shall estimate the 
quantity of MSW delivered using a schedule of estimated waste material weights in 
accordance with Section 15-25, Subsections (b) and (d) of the Miami-Dade County Code, as 
amended from time to time. The estimates shall take the place of actual weighing records, 
when the scales are not operational. The County shall use reasonable efforts to maintain the 
scales in an operable and accurate weighing condition. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
SHORT-TERM DISPOSAL 

The Contract City agrees that the County Solid Waste Management System may accept 
Solid Waste on a Short-Term Disposal basis from private or municipal haulers, so long as 
the capacity to receive MSW delivered on behalf of the Contract City is not impaired, and 
provided that such haulers shall pay (a) Short-Term Disposal Fee(s) of at least ten percent 
(10%) above that charged to Contract Cites. The (a) Short-Term Disposal Fee(s) shall be 
established by separate administrative order, which shall not become effective until 
approved by the Board. All Disposal Fee revenues generated pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be used to pay County Solid Waste Management System costs.  This provision shall 
not inhibit the County from entering into agreements with private haulers for delivery of 
Solid Waste to County disposal facilities (with the exception of agreements for delivery of 
Solid Waste collected by (a) private hauler(s) under contract with any municipality that is 
not a party to this Agreement, which shall be prohibited),  the minimum duration of which 
shall be ten (10) years, provided that the County shall not offer (a) Disposal Fee(s)  less 
than that agreed to herein by the Contract City to any  private hauler for the term of this 
Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
RELATIONSHIPS OF THE PARTIES 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute any party a partner, agent or local 
representative of the other party or to create any type of fiduciary responsibility of any kind 
whatsoever between the parties. The obligations to this Agreement are not joint; the 
obligations are separate and several between the Contract City and County. 

 
ARTICLE 7 
 HEADINGS 

Captions and headings in this Agreement are for ease of reference only and do not 
constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of any 
provisions herein.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 10       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

ARTICLE 8 
DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

The term of MSW deliveries by the Contract City to the County under this Agreement 
shall commence with the date of execution and shall remain in effect up to and including 
October 1, 20___.  The Agreement shall be executed and approved by resolution of the 
Contract City's governing body and shall become effective upon execution by the County.  
A copy of the resolution of approval shall be transmitted to the County Mayor within five 
(5) days following the date of each Contract City's approval.                                         

 
ARTICLE 9 

   AGREEMENT GOVERNS; ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement shall govern and supersede any other Interlocal agreement between the 
Contract City and the County with regard to use of the County Solid Waste Management 
System.  This writing embodies the entire Agreement and understanding between the 
parties hereto, and there are no other agreements or understandings, oral or written with 
reference to the subject matter hereof that are not merged herein and superseded hereby. 
 

ARTICLE 10 
   REPRESENTATIONS OF THE COUNTY 

The County represents that (A) this Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered by the Board of County Commissioners as the governing body of the County, and 
(B) it has the required power and authority to perform this Agreement.  
 

ARTICLE 11 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE CONTRACT CITY 

The Contract City represents that (A) this Agreement has been duly authorized, executed 
and delivered by the Governing Body of the Contract City, and (B) it has the required 
power and authority to perform this Agreement.  

 
ARTICLE 12  

APPROVALS AND NOTICES  
All notices, consents and other communications required, permitted or otherwise delivered 
under this Agreement shall be in writing and be delivered either by hand with proof of 
delivery or mailed by first class United States certified or registered mail, with return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, and in any case shall be addressed as follows: 
 
To County - 
Miami-Dade County 
Office of the Mayor 
Stephen P. Clark Center 
111 NW 1st Street 
Miami, Florida 33128  
 
 



Page 11       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

To Contract City - 
Ron Gorland                    
City Manager                   
201 Westward Drive         
Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 
 
Changes in the respective addresses above may be made from time to time by either party by 
notice to the other party. Notices and consents given by mail in accordance with this section 
shall be deemed to have been given five (5) business days after the day of dispatch, notices 
and consents given by any other means shall be deemed to have been given when received.  

 
ARTICLE 13 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 
This Agreement may be modified, altered or amended only by a written amendment duly 
executed by the parties hereto, and approved by the governing body of each party.  Any oral 
representations or modifications concerning this Agreement shall be of no force or effect.   

 
ARTICLE 14 

NON-ASSIGNMENT 
In no case shall  the Contract City assign, transfer, convey or otherwise hypothecate any 
interest, rights, duties, or obligations hereunder, or any part thereof.  In the event the a 
Contract City attempts to assign, transfer, convey or otherwise hypothecate this 
Agreement or the Contract City's rights, duties or obligations hereunder, or any part 
thereof, the County may at its option, terminate this Agreement with respect to the  
Contract City.                                             

 
  ARTICLE 15 

RIGHTS OF OTHERS 
Nothing in this Agreement, either express or implied is intended to confer upon any person 
other than the parties hereto any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.             
 

        ARTICLE 16  
     WAIVER 

There shall be no waiver of any right related to this Agreement unless that such waiver is in 
writing signed by the party waiving such right. No delay or failure to exercise a right under 
this Agreement shall impair such right or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof. Any 
waiver shall be limited to the particular rights waived and shall not be deemed a waiver of 
the same right at a later time of any other right under this Agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 12       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

  ARTICLE 17                             
    FORCE MAJEURE  

Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to carry out its obligations under this 
Agreement during any period when such party is rendered unable, in whole or in part, by 
Force Majeure to carry out such obligations, but the obligations of the party relying on such 
Force Majeure shall be suspended only during the continuance of any inability so caused 
and for no longer period, and such cause shall, so far as possible, be remedied with all 
reasonable dispatch.   It is further agreed and stipulated that the right of any party  hereto to 
excuse its failure to perform by reason of Force Majeure shall be conditioned upon such 
party giving, to the other party,  written notice of its assertion that a Force Majeure delay has 
commenced within five (5) working days after such commencement.  If there exists good 
cause for failure to give such notice, such failure shall not prejudice any party's right to 
justify any non-performance as caused by Force Majeure, unless the failure to give timely 
notice causes material prejudice to the other party.               
 

ARTICLE 18 
COUNTY EVENT OF DEFAULT  

The failure by the County to substantially fulfill any of its material obligations in 
accordance with this Agreement, unless excuses are justified by Force Majeure, shall 
constitute a "County event of default".  If a County event of default should occur, the 
Contract City shall have all of the following rights and remedies which each may exercise 
singly or in combination:  1.   the right to declare that this Agreement, together with all 
rights granted to the County, hereunder are terminated, effective upon such date as is 
designated by the Contract City; 2. any and all other rights provided under federal laws and 
the laws of the State of Florida. 3.  in any event, the County shall maintain responsibility for 
any debts owed to the  Contract City for services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, the Contract City shall 
not terminate this Agreement for a "County event of default" unless the Contract City first 
give(s) the County written notice of intent to terminate specifying the alleged default, and 
providing the County a period of sixty (60) days from receipt of notice within which to cure 
such default. 

 
ARTICLE 19 

CONTRACT CITY EVENT OF DEFAULT 
Without limitation, the failure by the Contract City to substantially fulfill any of its 
material obligations in accordance with this Agreement, unless excuses are justified by 
Force Majeure, shall constitute a "Contract City event of default". If a Contract City event 
of default should occur, the County shall have all of the following rights and remedies 
which it may exercise singly or in combination: 1. the right to declare that all rights granted 
to the Contract City hereunder are terminated, effective upon such date as is designated by 
the County; 2. any and all rights provided under federal laws and the laws of the State of 
Florida. 3. in any event, the Contract City shall maintain responsibility for any debts owed 
to the County for services provided under the terms of this Agreement. Notwithstanding 
any other provision of this article, the County shall not terminate this Agreement for a 



Page 13       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

"City event of default" unless the County first gives the Contract City  written notice of 
intent to terminate specifying the alleged default, and providing the Contract City a period 
of sixty (60) days from receipt of notice within which to cure such default.  
 

ARTICLE 20 
 FLORIDA LAW GOVERNS; VENUE IN MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

This Agreement, regardless of where executed, shall be governed by and construed 
according to the laws of the State of Florida, and venue shall be in Miami-Dade County, 
Florida.       
 

ARTICLE 21 
 TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated upon mutual consent, in writing, between the Contract 
City and the County. 
 

ARTICLE 22 
COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterpart(s), each of which shall be 
deemed an original. 

 
ARTICLE 23 

  INVALIDITY OF PROVISIONS 
Should any provision, paragraph, sentence, word or phrase contained in this Agreement be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or otherwise 
unenforceable under the laws of the State of Florida, such provision, paragraph, sentence, 
word or phrase shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary in order to conform with 
such laws, and this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 14       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Miami-Dade County, Florida, has caused this Agreement to be 
executed in its name by the County Mayor or his/her designee, attested by the Clerk of the 
Board of County Commissioners and has caused the seal of the Board of County 
Commissioners to be hereto attached; and the Contract City has caused this Agreement to 
be executed in its  name by the Manager/Mayor of the Contract City or his/her designee, 
attested by the Clerk of the Contract City's governing body and has caused the seal of the  
Contract City's governing body to be hereto attached, all on the day and year  first written 
above.          
               
 
Attest:  HARVEY RUVIN,      MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA   

Clerk of the Board    BY ITS BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS  

  
 
 
 
By:                                                       By: ____________________                                       

Deputy Clerk     County Mayor  
       Miami-Dade County Florida 
         111 N.W. 1st Street, 29th Floor 
       Miami, FL  33128 
        
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY BY: 
Miami-Dade County Attorney's Office 
111 N.W. 1st Street 
Miami, FL 33128 
 
 
                                                
Assistant County Attorney                                        
 



Page 15       

 
County Resolution No. R-167-13 
Contract City Resolution No. ___________ 
 

CONTRACT CITY 

 
              __________________________,   
                                                                                           a Florida Municipal Corporation 
         
 
 
 
ATTEST:      By: 
______________________________ 
        ________________________ 

 
           

 
 
 
  
 
                                                         This day of                                , 20            
___________________________             
                         
                                             
 
  
 

[corporate seal] 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE   APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
REQUIREMENTS:                                                    CORRECTNESS: 
 
 
________________________________   _________________________                                             

 
 

 

 

 





























 

 
 

 

 
Invoice 

 
      The Good Government Initiative  May 26, 2015 

   at the University of Miami                                                     
  1320 South Dixie Highway, Suite 911 

   Coral Gables, FL 33146  
      

   

     

 

To:           Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
City of Miami Springs 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

Job Payment Method 
  Leaders of Excellence  Class V Tuition  Check or Credit Card 

  
            

Description Total 
  Tuition includes all materials, instructors and speakers, meals for all 

sessions, lodging for two retreat weekends and transportation for field 
trips 

 $                  1,750.00  

 
  

    
  

  
      
      
      
      
      
      
      Total $ 1,750.00 
  

      

      
  

 
   

    
  

 
 

 
 

  
Please make all checks payable to the "Good Government Initiative"   

  

   

      

       
 
 
 
 

1320 South Dixie Hwy., Ste. 911, Coral Gables, FL 33146  305-689-8210  Jennifer@goodgov.net 

  



 

 
Contact:  Jessica Price                                                                             FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Tel. 305.689.8211 
Email: Jessica@goodgov.net 

 
 

THE GOOD GOVERNMENT INITIATIVE ANNOUNCES  
LEADERS OF EXCELLENCE PROGRAM CLASS V 

 
Coral Gables, FL- June 9, 2015— The Good Government Initiative at the University of Miami, 
founded by former Miami-Dade County Commissioner Katy Sorenson, today announced Class 
V of the 2015 Leaders of Excellence program. The program is designed to work with elected 
officials in South Florida to further develop the skills they need to be effective officeholders. 
The Leaders of Excellence curriculum focuses on topics such as ethics, budget and finance, 
media relations, economic development, working with constituents, land use and more. 
 
Classes will begin at the end of August and go through mid-November and will be hosted in a 
variety of venues throughout the region. The program, now in its fifth year, has granted 
certificates to 69 elected officials including: School Board Member Raquel Regalado, City of 
Miami Commissioner Francis Suarez, Florida Legislature Representative Holly Raschein, State 
Representative David Richardson, Congressman Carlos Curbelo and State Senator Dwight 
Bullard. The 2015 class comprises 17 elected officials including two school board members and 
municipal officials from Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties.   
 
“Our goal was to assemble a class that would add to our cohort of active, engaged leaders from 
South Florida who are eager to work with others and to develop knowledge and skills in 
governance.  They represent the future of leadership in South Florida,” Sorenson said. 
 
The 2015 program will kick off with an opening dinner and keynote address from Florida 
International University Professor and Assistant Dean of Academic Affairs Dr. Pedro J. Greer, 
MD, hosted at The Little Haiti Cultural Center. Other program speakers and presenters include: 
former US Senators Bob Graham and George LeMieux, political reporter Glenna Milberg, Lynn 
University Professor Robert Watson, Ph.D. and Shannon Estenoz, Director of Everglades 
Restoration Initiatives for the Department of Interior.  
 
The members of Class V are:  
 

Councilwoman Cheri Ball, Village of Pinecrest 
School Board Member Heather Brinkworth, Broward County Public Schools 

Commissioner Mark Brown, Town of Lauderdale-by-the-Sea 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner, City of Miami Springs 

Mayor Alice Burch, Miami Shores Village 
Commissioner Joy Carter, City of Coral Springs 



Councilman Luis de la Cruz, Village of Key Biscayne 
Commission Vice Chair Keon Hardemon, City of Miami 

Mayor Smith Joseph, City of North Miami 
Commissioner Denise Landman, City of Aventura 

Commissioner Daniella Levine Cava, Miami-Dade County Board of County Commissioners 
Commissioner Christopher McVoy, City of Lake Worth 

School Board Member Lubby Navarro, Miami-Dade County Public Schools 
Councilwoman Larissa Siegel Lara, Village of Palmetto Bay 

Mayor Joanne Simone, City of Margate 
Mayor George Vallejo, City of North Miami Beach 

Councilman David Williams, Jr., City of Miami Gardens 
 

Former Miami-Dade Commissioner Katy Sorenson founded the Good Government Initiative 
(GGI) at the University of Miami in 2010. After 16 years of service as a County Commissioner 
representing District 8, Sorenson launched GGI which offers programs for elected officials, 
candidates, and citizens throughout the year. Sorenson created the Leaders of Excellence 
program for elected officials, and works to promote excellence and integrity in South Florida 
government.   
 
Sorenson is a weekly contributor to the Sun Sentinel’s South Florida 100, and is featured 
regularly on both WPLG Local 10’s This Week in South Florida as a roundtable commentator and 
on WZAB 880 AM’s The Gray Zone. 
 

### 
 
 



___ City  ____  Contractor 
___ Curtiss Mansion                                                         ____    Architect 
        ____    Engineer                   

Page 1 of 11 
 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this           day of  June, 2015, between 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, a municipality organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of Florida (the “City”), CURTISS MANSION, INC. a Florida non-profit corporation (“Curtiss 
Mansion”), (the City and Curtiss Mansion sometimes collectively referred to as the “Owner”), 
R.J. HEISENBOTTLE ARCHITECTS, P.A. a Florida professional association and a Florida 
licensed architect (License #AAC001513) having its principal office at 2199 Ponce De Leon 
Boulevard, Suite 400, Coral Gables, FL 33134, (the “Architect”), DOUGLAS WOOD 
ASSOCIATES, INC., a Florida corporation and a Florida licensed engineer (License #EB6353) 
having its principal office at 2100 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, Suite 1020, Coral Gables, FL 
33134 (the “Engineer”), and CARIVON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, a Florida 
corporation and a Florida licensed general contractor (License # CGC046337) having its 
principal office at 12171 SW 131st Avenue, Miami, FL 33186 (the “Contractor”), (the City, 
Curtiss Mansion, the Architect, the Engineer and the Contractor collectively referred to as the 
“Parties”) for the  settlement of all claims, except as specifically set forth herein, by the Owner 
against the Architect, the Engineer and the Contractor as set forth in that certain Report dated 
January 3, 2014 from Willcott Engineering, Inc. regarding the Curtiss Mansion which is located 
at 500 Deer Run, Miami Springs, FL 33166 (the “Property”). 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City is the Owner of the Property; 

WHEREAS, Curtiss Mansion is a Florida not-for-profit company organized for the 
purpose of operating and maintaining the Property; 

WHEREAS, on August 17, 2007, the Architect and the City entered into a contract (the 
“Architect Agreement”) for which the Architect was to prepare plans and specifications for the 
Curtiss Mansion Historic Restoration Project (the “Original Renovation Project”); 

 WHEREAS, subsequent to the Architect Agreement, the Engineer was selected to serve 
as the structural engineer for the Original Renovation Project; 

 WHEREAS, on May 26, 2009, the Contractor entered into a contract with the City (the 
“Contractor Agreement”) for which the Contractor was to serve as the general contractor for the 
Original Renovation Project;  

WHEREAS, on or about February 11, 2014, the City timely placed the Architect, the 
Engineer and the Contractor on notice by providing each with an Owner’s Notice of Claim 
pursuant to Chapter 558, Florida Statutes, which provided notice of the premature rotting, 
deterioration, and failure of cypress timbers used in the, columns, balcony, railings and trellis of 
the Original Renovation Project (the “Defects and Deficiencies” or the “Claims”).  The alleged 



 

Page 2 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

Defects and Deficiencies are outlined in more detail in the January 3, 2014 Report from Willcott 
Engineering, Inc. (the “Willcott Report”) which is attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit 1. 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2014, the Parties met to discuss proposed repairs to the 
alleged Defects and Deficiencies at Curtiss Mansion (the “Meeting”); 
 
 WHEREAS, subsequent to the Meeting, the Architect, the Engineer and the Contractor 
elected to accept the requests by representatives of the City and repair most of the alleged 
Defects and Deficiencies stated within the Willcott Report (the “Repair Work”), which is 
memorialized in a certain written Proposal to the Owner dated January 15, 2015 (the “Proposal”) 
and attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit 2;   
 

WHEREAS, the Parties have reached a mutually acceptable resolution to the City and 
Curtiss Mansion as to the alleged Defects and Deficiencies with respect to the Original 
Renovation Project; 

WHEREAS, as part of the Settlement Agreement, the Architect and the Engineer have 
agreed to design and the Contractor has agreed to construct and or perform the repairs to the 
Property as more fully described in Exhibit 2 herein at no cost or expense to the City and Curtiss 
Mansion; 

WHEREAS, as part of the Settlement Agreement, the Contractor has obtained a Proposal 
dated February 26, 2015 from Structural Roof Systems, Inc. (the “SRS Proposal”) who, along 
with the Contractor will perform the Repair Work at the Property at no cost or expense to the 
City and Curtiss Mansion.  The SRS Proposal is attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit 3; 

 WHEREAS, the Architect and the Engineer have prepared the design plans and 
specifications attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit 4 and shall provide other design 
services for the Repair Work identified herein, as necessary at no cost or expense to the City and 
Curtiss Mansion; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor shall provide the construction services for the Repair Work 
identified herein and in Exhibit 2 attached hereto, at no cost or expense to the City and Curtiss 
Mansion; 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the construction services which the Contractor will provide for the 
Repair Work identified herein in Exhibit 2 hereto, the Contractor has prepared a Protection Plan 
(the “Protection Plan”) which is attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit 5; and a 
Construction Schedule (the “Construction Schedule”) which is attached and incorporated hereto 
as Exhibit 6. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Curtiss Mansion, as part of the Settlement Agreement, agree to 
permit the Contractor, the Architect and the Engineer to provide the services and work for the 
Repair Work outlined in Exhibit 2 hereto.   
 



 

Page 3 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

 WHEREAS, the Parties deny any allegation of any wrongdoing; 

 WHEREAS, the Parties recognize it is in their best interest to avoid costly and 

unpredictable litigation and instead to resolve and settle the Claims in an amicable fashion; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing promises and the following 

mutual promises, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of such 

consideration being acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The above Recitals are true and accurate, are material inducements for each of the 

Parties and are incorporated into the Settlement Agreement.   

2. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Settlement Agreement, the Parties 

shall execute a Multi-Party Agreement for the Design & Construction of the Repairs to the 

Curtiss Mansion.  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that this document is merely a 

Settlement Agreement, it being understood that this Settlement Agreement is not intended to 

create, nor should it be construed as creating a Multi-Party Agreement for the Design & 

Construction of the Repairs to the Curtiss Mansion (“Construction Contract”) under the terms 

outlined herein or on any other terms or conditions and that no binding Construction Contract for 

the Repair Work shall be deemed to have been entered into unless and until the Parties have 

executed and exchanged such Construction Contract.  However, the Parties acknowledge, 

understand and agree that the execution of the Construction Contract shall be a condition 

precedent for enforcement of this Settlement Agreement.  In the event the Parties fail to execute 

the Construction Contract, this Settlement Agreement shall be considered null and void and of no 

further force or effect. 



 

Page 4 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

3. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Settlement Agreement, the Parties 

shall execute a Mutual General Release of Claims releasing each other, subject to compliance 

with the provisions of the Settlement Agreement as set forth herein and the Construction 

Contract.  A copy of the Mutual General Release of Claims agreed to by the Parties is attached 

hereto as Exhibit 7. 

4. The Settlement Agreement is intended to resolve all claims, disputes, 

controversies, litigation and issues which could have been brought by the City and Curtiss 

Mansion based on the Willcott Report, except for those issues specifically excluded by the 

Proposal and excluded in the Mutual General Release of Claims.  The Parties desire to settle, 

compromise and/or resolve disputes by and between them, as specifically set forth herein, 

without further proceedings, all as heretofore agreed by the Parties. 

5. This Settlement Agreement does not release any claims by the City or Curtiss 

Mansion regarding the issue of the trusses, as outlined in the Willcott Report, and the City and 

Curtiss Mansion reserve all rights to make future claims regarding the issue of the trusses, as 

outlined in the Willcott Report.  Moreover, this Settlement Agreement does not release any 

claims for latent defects or rights for indemnity for unknown future claims, or for any items not 

outlined in the Willcott Report, for which the Architect, the Engineer and the Contractor reserve 

all defenses. 

6. The Architect and the Engineer agree to provide the necessary design and 

specification so that the Contractor can and the Contractor agrees to perform the work outlined in 

the Proposal as set forth in the Proposal and the Construction Contract.  The work outlined in the 

Proposal and the Construction Contract will include the SRS Proposal and some/all of the work 



 

Page 5 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

outlined in the Proposal will be performed by the Contractor and/or Structural Roof Systems, 

Inc.  The Architect and the Engineer will not be responsible or liable for the actions, intentional 

or negligent, defects, errors, omissions or negligence of the Contractor and/or Structural Roof 

Systems, Inc.  The Contractor shall be charged with the means, methods, timing, 

implementation, carry-on, control, safety and performance of the Repair Work outlined in the 

Proposal and the Contractor shall be solely responsible for such. The Contractor will not be 

responsible or liable for the actions, intentional or negligent, defects, errors, omissions or 

negligence of the Architect or the Engineer.   

7. The Contractor, will comply with the Protection Plan and the Construction 

Schedule. 

8. The City and Curtiss Mansion will not be responsible for payment of any of the 

costs and expenses associated with the Proposal or the Construction Contract.  The Architect, the 

Engineer and the Contractor shall be fully and completely responsible for all costs and expenses 

of the Proposal and the Construction Contract.  The Contractor, Architect and Engineer are 

performing their respective portions of the Repair Work at no charge, and the cost of the SRS 

Proposal, as reflected in the Proposal and Construction Contract, is being paid for by the 

Architect and Engineer’s insurance carriers in equal parts. 

 9. The City and Curtiss Mansion agree that they do not have any other presently 

known claims against the Architect, the Engineer and the Contractor, including claims for 

damages of any type or nature, except as specifically set forth in the Willcott Report.  The 

Settlement Agreement is intended to be a full settlement of all presently known disputes, claims, 



 

Page 6 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

or causes of action that the City and Curtiss Mansion had or have against the Architect, the 

Engineer and the Contractor, except for the trusses issue, as outlined in the Willcott Report.  

 10. Each party signing below represents and warrants that he/she/it/they is/are the 

proper party to assert the demand for the Defects and Deficiencies and to receive the benefits of 

the Settlement Agreement, and that no claims have been assigned.  To secure the settlement of 

the Defects and Deficiencies, the Settlement Agreement herein, and other good and valuable 

benefits secured by this settlement, each signing party hereby declares that he/she/it/they is/are of 

legal age, is/are under no legal disability, and is/are competent to and has/have full and complete 

authority to execute the Settlement Agreement.   

 11. Each party hereto has had full and fair opportunity to review the terms and 

conditions of the Settlement Agreement with legal counsel of its/his/her own choosing 

concerning advisability of entering into the Settlement Agreement.  Each party hereto 

understands the contents of the Settlement Agreement and is executing the Settlement 

Agreement as a result of its/his/her own free will and not out of or as a result of any economic or 

other coercion. 

 12. The validity, interpretation, and performance of the Settlement Agreement shall 

be controlled by and construed under the laws of the State of Florida and any action at law, suit 

in equity, or other judicial proceeding for the enforcement of the Settlement Agreement shall be 

instituted in the courts of record in Miami-Dade County, Florida.   

 13. The failure of any party to the Settlement Agreement to insist upon the 

performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Settlement Agreement, or the waiver of 

any breach of the terms and conditions of this Settlement Agreement, shall not be construed as 



 

Page 7 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

thereafter waiving any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full 

force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred. 

 14. This Settlement Agreement, including the Exhibits attached and included thereto, 

embodies the entire understanding of the Parties and merges and supersedes any and all 

provisions negotiations, agreements, representations, commitments, or understandings, written or 

oral, in effect between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No alteration or 

modification of any provision of the Settlement Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing 

and signed by the Parties.  The making, execution and delivery of the Settlement Agreement by 

the Parties has not been induced by any promises, representations, warranties, or other 

agreements other than those herein described. 

 15. It is understood and agreed by the Parties that this Settlement Agreement is 

neither intended nor to be interpreted as an admission of fault, liability, or legal responsibility on 

the part of the Parties; said fault, responsibility, and legal liability being expressly denied.   

   16. The undersigned(s) agree that he/she/it/they will be responsible for 

the payment of their own attorneys’ fees and costs which he/she/it/they has incurred in the 

prosecution/defense of this claim/lawsuit. 

 17. The Settlement Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and upon such 

execution, shall be complete, and the terms, provisions and obligations set forth herein shall be in 

full force and effect. 

 18. The terms and conditions of the Settlement Agreement shall not be construed 

against any party as drafter hereof or as a party having superior bargaining position in relation to 



 

Page 8 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

the other party.  Ambiguities shall be construed in a manner that most accurately and fairly 

reflects the intentions of the Parties. 

 19. The Parties further acknowledge and agree: that no promises or agreements not 

herein expressed have been made; that the Settlement Agreement constitutes the entire 

agreement between the Parties; that the terms of the Settlement Agreement are contractual and 

not a mere recital; and that there is no agreement or compromise on the part of the Parties to take 

any action not herein mentioned. 

 20. If any section or part of the Settlement Agreement is held to be invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of law, the remaining portions of the Settlement Agreement shall 

continue to be in full force and effect.  

 21. The Settlement Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 

the Parties and their respective heirs, descendants, successors, officers, directors, managers, 

members, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, agents, employees, assigns, executors, administrators, 

legal representatives, insurers, re-insurers and attorneys. 

22.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have each hereunto executed the Settlement 

Agreement in multiple originals on the day and year first written above. 

WITNESSES:      R.J. HEISENBOTTLE ARCHITECTS, P.A. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  By:       
 
       Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  Its:       
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) ss: 



 

Page 9 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

COUNTY OF   ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                  as                                       of R.J. HEISENBOTTLE 
ARCHITECTS, P.A., who, being by me first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed 
the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to me/produced   
        as identification, and did/did not take an 
oath. 
 
[seal]              
       NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 
WITNESSES:  DOUGLAS WOOD ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  By:        
 
       Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                    as                                          of 
DOUGLAS WOOD ASSOCIATES, INC., who, being by me first duly sworn, deposes and says 
that he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to 
me/produced                        as 
identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]              
       NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 
WITNESSES:  CARIVON CONSTRUCTION, CO. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  By:        
       Print:       
___________________________________ 



 

Page 10 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

Print Name__________________________  Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                    as                                          of 
CARIVON CONSTRUCTION, CO., who, being by me first duly sworn, deposes and says that 
he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to 
me/produced                                              as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]              
       NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
WITNESSES:  THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  By:        
 
       Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                 as                                            of THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, who, being by me first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she 
executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to me/produced                                              
as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]              
       NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
WITNESSES:  CURTISS MANSION, INC. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  By:        
 



 

Page 11 of 11 
Settlement Agreement 

       Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________  Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 
appeared                                    as                                          of 
CURTISS MANSION, INC., who, being by me first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she 
executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to me/produced                                              
as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]             
      NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 1 of 18 

 
MULTI-PARTY AGREEMENT FOR THE DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION  

OF THE REPAIRS TO THE CURTISS MANSION 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this           day of  June 2015, between CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, a municipality organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida 
(“City”), CURTISS MANSION, INC. a Florida non-profit corporation (“Curtiss Mansion”) (City and 
Curtiss Mansion sometimes collectively referred to as “Owner”), R. J. HEISENBOTTLE 
ARCHITECTS, P.A. a Florida professional association and Florida licensed architect (License 
#AAC001513) having its principal office at 2199 Ponce De Leon Blvd., Suite 400, Coral Gables, FL 
33134, (the “Architect”), DOUGLAS WOOD ASSOCIATES, INC., a Florida corporation and a Florida 
licensed engineer (License #EB6353) having its principal office at 2100 Ponce De Leon Blvd., Suite 
#1020, Coral Gables, FL 33134 (the “Engineer”), and CARIVON CONSTRUCTION, COMPANY, a 
Florida licensed general contractor (License # CGC046337) and a Florida  corporation having its 
principal office at 12171 SW 131st Avenue, Miami, FL 33186 (the “Contractor”), (City, Curtiss 
Mansion, Architect, Engineer and Contractor collectively referred to as “Parties”) for the design and 
construction of the repair to the Curtiss Mansion located at 500 Deer Run, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
(the “Property”) in accordance with the Contract Documents, hereinafter defined. 
 

WHEREAS, City is the Owner of the Property; 

WHEREAS, Mansion is a Florida not-for-profit company organized for the purpose of operating 
and maintaining the Property; 

WHEREAS, on August 17th, 2007, the Architect and the City entered into a contract 
(“Architect Agreement”) for which the Architect was to prepare plans and specifications for the Curtiss 
Mansion Historic Restoration Project (“Original Renovation Project”); 

 WHEREAS, subsequent to the Architect Agreement, the Engineer was selected to serve as the 
structural engineer for the Original Renovation Project; 

 WHEREAS, on May 26th, 2009, the Contractor entered into a contract with the City 
(“Contractor Agreement”) for which Contractor was to serve as the general contractor for the Original 
Renovation Project;  

WHEREAS, on or about February 11, 2014, the City placed the Architect, Engineer and 
Contractor on notice by providing each with an Owner’s Notice of Claim pursuant to Chapter 558, 
Florida Statutes, which provided notice of the premature rotting, deterioration, and failure of cypress 
timbers used in the trusses, columns, balcony, railings and trellis of the Original Renovation Project 
(“Defects and Deficiencies” or the “Claims”).  The alleged Defects and Deficiencies are outlined in 
more detail in the January 3, 2014 report from Willcott Engineering, Inc. (“WEI”) which is attached to 
the Parties’ Settlement Agreement; 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2014, the Parties met to discuss a proposed repair to the alleged 
Defects and Deficiencies at Curtiss Mansion (the “Meeting”); 
 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 2 of 18 

 WHEREAS, subsequent to the Meeting the Architect, Engineer and Contractor elected to accept 
the requests by representatives of the City and repair most of the alleged Defects and Deficiencies stated 
within the WEI report (“Repair Work”);   

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have reached a mutually acceptable resolution to the City and Curtiss 
Mansion’s Claims with respect to the Original Renovation Project and have executed a Settlement 
Agreement memorializing their agreement; 

WHEREAS, as part of the Settlement Agreement, Architect and Engineer have agreed to design 
and Contractor has agreed to construct and or perform the repairs to the Property as more fully described 
in the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and in the Contract Documents herein (“Project”), all at 
zero cost or expense to the City and the Curtiss Mansion; 

 WHEREAS, Architect and Engineer have prepared the design plans and specifications attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” and shall provide other services for the Repair Work identified herein: 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor shall provide the construction services for the Repair Work identified 
herein; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Curtiss Mansion, as part of the Settlement Agreement, seek to engage 
Architect and Engineer to provide the design services outlined herein and the Contractor to provide the 
construction services and work for the Repair Work outlined herein.   
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
 That the Parties for the consideration hereinafter named, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged by the Parties, accept all recitals set forth above as true and accurate and agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

  
 1.1 In addition to this Agreement, the following documents shall comprise the contract 
documents ("Contract Documents"): 
 

A) Exhibits to this Agreement;   
 
B)  Written modifications to the Contract Documents.  

     
 1.2 All of the Contract Documents identified herein are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference and shall be deemed to be of the same force and effect as if actually attached hereto. 
 
 1.3 The manufacturers of any products utilized in connection with the performance of the 
Repair Work shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Manufacturers,” and the warranties to be issued by 
such Manufacturers shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Manufacturers’ Warranties.” 
 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 3 of 18 

 1.4 The Contract Documents shall be interpreted together and in harmony with one another.  
However, in the case of conflict between this Agreement and the other Contract Documents, this 
Agreement shall control.  Notwithstanding, the Parties agree that it is the responsibility of the Architect, 
Engineer and Contractor to resolve any conflicts or discrepancies between the work contemplated by 
Exhibit “A” and the Drawings and Specifications in Exhibit “B”.  Under no circumstances shall City 
or Curtiss Mansion be responsible for any costs arising out of discrepancies between Exhibit “A” and 
Exhibit “B”.  It is the intent of this Agreement that Architect, Engineer and Contractor provide all 
Design Services and Repair Work required to repair the Defects and Deficiencies at no cost to City or 
Curtiss Mansion. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
SCOPE OF SERVICES & WORK 

 
  2.1 The intention of this Agreement is that Architect, Engineer and Contractor 
provide all design services, materials, supervision, labor, tools and equipment necessary for the Repair 
Work in accordance with the agreed upon scope as reflected in the plans and specifications attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” and as outlined below: 

 
a) Contractor shall replace both tall Cypress timber columns with Pressure Treated Southern 

Pine timber columns of the same size and dimensions as originally specified within the 
Architect’s plans and specifications for the Project, which are attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B”, and stain with oil based stain/sealer to match remaining Cypress timber.    

 
b) Contractor shall replace the four short Cypress portal timber columns at the second floor 

terrace with Pressure Treated Southern Pine timber columns of the same size and 
dimensions as originally specified within the Architect’s plans and specifications for the 
Project, which are attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and stain with oil based stain/sealer to 
match remaining Cypress timber.  
 

c) At roof timber (C-2 core), Contractor shall add copper metal flashing to protect 
connection plate and wood beam. 
 

d) Contractor shall replace front trellis in its entirety with Pressure Treated Southern Pine 
timbers of the same size and dimensions as originally specified within the Architect’s 
plans and specifications for the Project, which are attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and 
stain with oil based stain/sealer. 
 

e) Contractor to replace rear trellis members with Pressure Treated Southern Pine timber of 
the same size and dimensions as originally specified within the Architect’s plans and 
specifications for the Project, which are attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and stain with 
oil based stain/sealer. 

 
f) Contractor to install epoxy wood filler in accordance with the City approved submittals 

from Engineer.  
 

2.2 Design Services.  Architect and Engineer have provided and shall provide all architecture 
and engineering services related to the Repair Work (“Design Services”) at no cost to Owner. 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 4 of 18 

 
 .1 Architect and Engineer have prepared plans and specifications for the demolition 

and Repair Work for the Project attached hereto as Exhibit “B” which plans and 
specifications include the shoring plan required for the demolition and shall 
provide any additional Design Services required to effectuate the Repair Work; 

 .2 Architect and Engineer shall assist the Owner in responding to any inquiries from 
governmental authorities with respect to permitting and approval of the Repair 
Work; 

  
 4. Architect and Engineer shall review or take other appropriate actions on the 

Contractor’s and its subcontractors’ and supplier’s submittals and respond to 
requests for information with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient 
time to meet the Project schedule.If appropriate, the Architect and Engineer shall 
prepare and issue supplemental drawings and specifications in response to 
requests for information.  

 
2.3 Repair Work. Contractor shall provide all materials, supervision, labor, tools and  

equipment, necessary to complete the Repair Work contemplated in 2.1 of this Agreement and Exhibits 
“A” and “B” in strict accordance with the Contract Documents, and perform all work that is reasonably 
inferable therefrom as being necessary to accomplish the intent of the Contract Documents, and as 
required by all applicable laws, ordinances and rules and regulations of any governing authority 
including but not limited to the provisions of the Florida Building Code, and any amendments thereto 
and all Manufacturers’ Specifications.    

 
2.4 The Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for all methods, means, 

procedures, timing, safety, implementation, carry-on, control, and performance of the Repair Work.  The 
Architect and Engineer shall bear no responsibility for any work performed by the Contractor in the 
performance of the Repair Work.  The Architect and Engineer shall under no circumstances be required 
to supervise or control the Contractor in the Project.  The Architect and Engineer’s liability, if any, for 
this Project shall be solely and completely limited to their own respective and individual actions in the 
preparation of the design plans and specifications attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and any delay, if any, 
resulting directly from any actions or lack of actions directly attributable to the Architect or Engineer 
separately to each. 

 
2.5 The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that any and all plans and specifications 

for the Repair Work shall be subject to City’s review and approval.  The Parties acknowledge, 
understand and agree that absent any subsequent modifications, the Architect’s and Engineer’s plans and 
specifications attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, illustrate the Repair Work and delineate the required 
wood specifications to be performed at Curtiss Mansion.  

 
ARTICLE 3 

TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 
 

3.1 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect, Engineer, and Contractor shall submit 
all documentation necessary to obtain all required permit(s) for the performance of the Repair Work 
from any governing authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Upon approval by the authorities 
having jurisdiction over the Project and the issuance of a permit(s), Contractor shall: (1) Submit all 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 5 of 18 

submittals, if not already submitted and approved, to Owner and Owner’s Representative on or before 
July 1, 2015 for Owner and Owner’s Representative’s approval on or before July 15, 2015; and (2) 
commence the Repair Work on August 17, 2015 and shall substantially complete the Repair Work no 
later than September 21, 2015.  Substantial Completion (“Substantial Completion”) of the Repair Work 
shall mean that all work, labor, services and materials required by the Contract Documents are fully 
complete and the authorities having jurisdiction over the Project have conducted all inspections and 
provided all authorization(s) necessary for Owner’s use of the Project.  Further, Contractor shall remove 
all materials, staging, temporary facilities and tools from the Project site and conducted final cleaning, 
with the exception of final staining of the timber.  Final completion shall be within 20 days following 
Substantial Completion.    

 
 3.2 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Repair 
Work by an act or neglect of the Owner, or by labor disputes not specific to Contractor or its 
subcontractors, fire, unusual and unavoidable delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or adverse 
weather conditions, including but not limited to hurricanes, and which had an adverse effect on the 
scheduled construction, then the Contract Time shall be extended accordingly.  However, Architect, 
Engineer and Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation for delays.  The schedule is 
established and controlled by the Contractor, under no circumstances shall the Architect and Engineer be 
responsible for any delays in the commencement, progress or completion of the Project unless the direct 
actions or inactions of the Architect and Engineer were the sole and absolute cause of any such delay.  
Further, under no circumstances shall Architect and Engineer be responsible for delays associated with 
an act or neglect of the Owner, or by labor disputes, fire, unusual and unavoidable delay in deliveries, 
unavoidable casualties or adverse weather conditions.  This list is not a limitation on any other causes of 
delays resulting to the Project.  

 
 
3.3 All Parties further acknowledge and are aware that Curtiss Mansion is frequently used for 

weddings and other special occasions, none of which are currently scheduled or will be scheduled during 
the work period set forth above which has been specified as the time period for the performance of the 
Repair Work.  Architect, Engineer, and Contractor agree that the work period set forth above is 
sufficient time in which to Substantially Complete the Repair Work, with the exception of unusual and 
unavoidable delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or adverse weather conditions, including but not 
limited to hurricanes. Further, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the Curtiss Mansion does have 
numerous events scheduled after September 21, 2015 and thereafter. Thus, the Repair Work must 
absolutely and unconditionally be Substantially Complete by September 21, 2015.  In the event the 
Repair Work is not Substantially Complete by September 21, 2015, to the extent and solely to the extent 
of each party’s responsibility, City, Curtiss Mansion, Contractor, Engineer and Architect shall be 
responsible for the damages incurred by City and Curtiss Mansion for delays in completion of the Repair 
Work, With respect to concurrent delays by City, Curtiss Mansion, Contractor, Engineer and/or 
Architect, the party substantially at fault shall be responsible for the City’s and Curtiss Mansion’s 
damages.  

 
3.4 The permit fees for fees issued by the City of Miami Springs shall be waived.  Contractor 

shall be required to pay for all other permits required for the Repair Work. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
CONTRACT SUM 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 6 of 18 

 
4.1 The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that the full and satisfactory performance 

of the Repair Work and Design Services for the Repair Work shall be for the lump sum payment of Zero 
and 00/100 Dollars ($0.00) and the good and valuable consideration as provided by the Settlement 
Agreement.  Any and all costs and expenses associated with the performance of the Repair Work and 
Design Services shall be the full and sole responsibility of the Architect, Engineer and Contractor.  In no 
event shall Architect, Engineer or Contractor be entitled to any payment for the Repair Work and/or 
Design Services. The consideration for this Agreement is as provided in the Settlement Agreement.  The 
Parties do hereby recognize and acknowledge the receipt and sufficiency of consideration for this 
Agreement.  The Architect, Engineer and Contractor are performing their respective portions of the 
Repair Work at no charge, and the cost of the SRS Proposal, as reflected in the Proposal and 
Construction Contract, is being paid for by the Architect and Engineer’s insurance carriers in equal 
parts. 
 

There shall be no payments made under this Agreement by Owner for the performance of any 
Design Services or Repair Work.  

 
ARTICLE 5 

OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE 
 
 5.1 Gary Kuhl of WEI or such other entity or individual as may be designated by the City 
and Curtiss Mansion shall be the Owner’s Representative during the performance of the Design Services 
and Repair Work and until issuance of the final approval of the Repair Work.  Owner’s Representative 
shall perform its services with reasonable promptness so as not to delay the Project. The Owner’s 
Representative shall be solely compensated by the City and/or Curtiss Mansion and Architect, Engineer 
and Contractor shall have no responsibility for payment to the Owner’s Representative. 
 
 5.2   The Owner’s Representative shall at all times have access to the Design Services and 
Repair Work. 
 
 5.3   The Owner's Representative will have authority to reject Design Services and Repair 
Work which does not conform to the Contract Documents.  In such event, the Architect, Engineer or 
Contractor, as applicable, shall have four (4) business days to begin to correct such Design Services or 
Repair Work to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner's Representative. 
 
 5.4 The parties hereto acknowledge that the Owner reserves the right to schedule and conduct 
meetings with representatives of the Owner’s Representative, Owner, Architect, Engineer and/or 
Contractor  upon reasonable notice, Architect’s, Engineer’s and Contractor’s attendance at such 
meetings is required.  However, Architect and Engineer shall not be required to attend more than two (2) 
meetings during the Project. 
 
 5.5 Owner’s Representative shall review and approve Contractor’s submittals, visit the 
Project site, reject nonconforming work and certify completion of the Repair Work.  Indicating the 
Repair Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.  Notwithstanding, this shall 
not relieve Architect, Engineer or Contractor of meeting their obligations under this Agreement and the 
Settlement Agreement.  
 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 7 of 18 

 
ARTICLE 6 

ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER 
 
 6.1 Architect and Engineer each represent for itself that it is properly qualified and licensed 
in the State of Florida and otherwise in good standing with the State of Florida.  The Architect and 
Engineer shall each perform all Design Services with the respective professional skill and care ordinarily 
provided by similar professionals practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar 
circumstances.  Design Services shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of 
any public authority, including but not limited to the Florida Building Code, and all amendments thereto, 
and all other authorities having jurisdiction over the Repair Work and Property.   
 
 6.2  Architect shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and Curtiss Mansion and their 
respective officers, directors, agents and employees (the "Indemnified Parties") from liability, damages, 
and losses, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of 
Architect or other persons employed or utilized by the Architect in the performance of the Agreement.  
In any and all claims against the Indemnified Parties by any employee of the Architect or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by Architect or anyone for whose acts Architect may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under this Paragraph 6.4 shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 
the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Architect under 
Workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.  The provisions of 
this paragraph shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 
 6.3  Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and Curtiss Mansion and their 
respective officers, directors, agents and employees (the "Indemnified Parties") from liability, damages, 
and losses, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of 
Engineer or other persons employed or utilized by the Engineer in the performance of the Agreement.  
In any and all claims against the Indemnified Parties by any employee of the Engineer or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by Engineer or anyone for whose acts Engineer may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under this Paragraph 6.5 shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 
the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Engineer under 
Workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.  The provisions of 
this paragraph shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 
 6.4 The Engineer and Architect shall coordinate with each other to finish the Design Services 
before and during construction. 
 

ARTICLE 7 
CONTRACTOR 

 
 7.1 Contractor represents that it is a properly qualified and licensed contractor in good 
standing with the State of Florida and is a corporation in good standing, organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Florida.  Contractor further represents that it has read, examined and understands the 
pertinent Contract Documents and is well qualified and able to perform this Repair Work; that it has a 
sufficient number of qualified personnel to assure timely performance of this Repair Work; that it has 
the proper tools and equipment to perform this Repair Work; and is financially capable of performing 
this Agreement. 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 8 of 18 

 
 7.2 Contractor warrants and represents to the Owner that it has visited the site of the Repair 
Work, examined the actual job conditions and that Contractor is familiar with local conditions and all 
things required that will have a bearing on performance of Contractor's work, including but not limited 
to traffic maintenance, disposal, handling and storage of the materials, access roads to the site, the 
conditions of the work area, and the character of the Repair Work.  Contractor hereby assumes the risk 
of performing all Repair Work necessary to accomplish the intent of the Contract Documents.   
 
 7.3 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Repair Work using its best skill and 
attention.  The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Repair Work under the Agreement.  
All Repair Work shall be performed by craftsmen skilled in the trades and application of materials 
involved. 
 
 7.4 Unless otherwise specifically noted, the Contractor shall provide all permits and shall 
provide and pay for all licenses, labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction, equipment, machinery, 
transportation, use and other similar taxes and other facilities and services necessary for the proper 
execution and completion of the Repair Work.  Contractor shall be responsible to fully insure all 
materials and equipment on the Property.  In no event shall Owner be liable or responsible for any 
damages to such materials or equipment, including but not limited to any damages arising from theft or 
vandalism of such materials or equipment. 
 
 7.5 The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its 
employees, and shall not employ any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the task assigned to him. 
 
 7.6 The Contractor warrants to the Owner that all materials incorporated in the Repair Work 
will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all Repair Work will be of first quality, free from faults 
and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents.  All Work not so conforming to these 
standards may be considered non-conforming.  Contractor shall not substitute any materials for those 
materials specified by the Contract Documents without the prior written consent of Owner and Owner’s 
Representative. 
 
 7.7 The Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes required by law 
and shall secure and pay for all permits, except permits issued by the City of Miami Springs, and 
licenses necessary for the execution of the Repair Work. 

 
7.8 The Contractor warrants and represents that the Repair Work when completed will 

comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public authority, including but not 
limited to the Florida Building Code, and all amendments thereto, and all other authorities having 
jurisdiction over the Repair Work and Property.   Contractor shall be liable for any deviation from any 
laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public authority in the construction of the Repair 
Work.  Contractor shall bear sole responsibility for and bear all costs necessary to insure full compliance 
with the representations contained herein, including, but not limited to, the cost of removing existing 
work, the cost of replacing any work with work conforming to the applicable requirements and any 
attorney’s fees or other expenses incurred by Owner in responding to any complaints, citations, court 
orders, administrative orders or similar governmental edicts or process, provided, however, the Owner 
provides written notice to the Contractor of any such situation necessary to insure full compliance, with 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 9 of 18 

a reasonable opportunity cure.  The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination and 
completion of this Agreement.   
 
 7.9 The Contractor shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of all its employees and all 
subcontractors, their agents and employees and all other persons performing any of the Repair Work 
under a contract with the Contractor. All such individuals shall be properly trained and shall wear 
identifying uniforms at all times while on the Property. 
 
 7.10  The Contractor at all times shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste 
materials or rubbish caused by its operations. At the completion of the Repair Work, Contractor shall 
remove, at its sole cost and expense, all waste materials and rubbish from and about the Property as well 
as its tools and equipment, shall clean all surfaces, and shall leave the Repair Work "broom clean" or its 
equivalent, except as otherwise specified.  Contractor agrees to immediately repair at its sole cost and 
expense all damages to the Property arising from or relating to Contractor's performance of the Repair 
Work to the reasonable satisfaction of the Owner.    
 
 7.11 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and Curtiss Mansion and their 
respective officers, directors, agents and employees (the "Indemnified Parties") from liability, damages, 
losses and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, at both the trial and appellate 
level, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of 
Contractor, its subcontractors, or other persons employed or utilized by the Contractor in the 
performance of the Agreement.  In any and all claims against the Indemnified Parties by any employee 
of the Contractor, any subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor of a 
subcontractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable, the indemnification obligation under 
this Paragraph 7.11 shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, 
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any subcontractor under Workmen's 
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.  The provisions of this 
paragraph shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 
 7.12 The Contractor shall coordinate with its subcontractors and suppliers to perform the 
Repair Work timely.   
 

7.13 Contractor shall be fully responsible for arranging any inspections required by the 
Manufacturers’ representatives, if any, in order to insure that the Manufacturers’ Warranties, if any, will 
be issued to the Owner. 
 

7.14 The Contractor agrees that its Repair Work shall not unreasonably interfere with the 
normal operation of the Property. 7.15The Contractor shall perform the Repair Work subject to 
compliance with all governmental rules and regulations pertaining to allowable construction working 
hours, specifically, and without limitation Section 99-08 of the City of Miami Springs Code of 
Ordinances. Contractor shall coordinate access for weekend work with the City and Curtiss Mansion. 
 
 7.16 In the event of an approaching Hurricane, or other tropical storm, in which an evacuation 
order applicable to the Property is issued by the local governmental weather authorities, Contractor shall 
secure its work site and all equipment used by Contractor in furtherance or performance of the Repair 
Work.  Contractor shall also board or otherwise secure all any areas of the building under construction 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 10 of 18 

or remaining open as a result of the Repair Work being performed by Contractor.  The foregoing shall 
be performed by Contractor at no cost to the Owner. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
SUBCONTRACTS 

 
 8.1 Contractor may subcontract portions of the Repair Work contemplated under this 
Agreement upon submission and approval of the Owner of its proposed subcontractor.  Owner approves 
of SRS as a subcontractor. 8.2Contractor shall be responsible for making payment to all subcontractors 
and suppliers and shall specifically provide in its agreements with subcontractors and suppliers that the 
Owner has no payment obligations to Contractor for the Repair Work and that Contractor is solely 
responsible for payment of all amounts due any subcontractors or suppliers.  All subcontractors shall 
carry insurance commercially and reasonably appropriate for their scope of work.  

 
ARTICLE 9 

TIME 
 
 9.1 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence in this Agreement. 
 
  

ARTICLE 10 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

 
 10.1 The Contractor shall comply with the Protection Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and 
shall otherwise be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the Repair Work.  The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for 
the safety of, and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to (1) all 
employees on the Repair Work and other persons who may be affected thereby, (2) all the Repair Work 
and all materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, and (3) other property at the site or adjacent 
thereto.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and order 
of any public authority having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from 
damage, injury or loss.  All damage or loss to any property caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, 
any subcontractor, any sub-subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or 
by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by the Contractor at its sole cost 
and expense. 
 

ARTICLE 11 
LIABILITY INSURANCE 

 
 11.1  The Contractor shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect it from claims 
under Worker's Compensation acts and other employee benefit acts, from claims for damages because of 
bodily injury, including death and from claims for damages to property which may arise out of or result 
from the Contractor's operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by itself or by any 
subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them.  The Contractor shall purchase 
and maintain insurance coverage in the amounts set forth on the Certificates of Insurance attached hereto 
as Exhibit "C."  Contractor shall maintained completed operations coverage for a period of ten (10) 
years from completion of the Repair Work.  



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 11 of 18 

 
 11.2 The Architect and Engineer shall each purchase and maintain insurance coverage in the 
amounts set forth in the Certificates of Insurance attached hereto as part of Exhibit “D” and Exhibit 
“E”.  Architect and Engineer shall each maintain professional liability insurance for a period of three (3) 
years from completion of the Repair Work. 
 
 11.3  The City and Curtiss Mansion shall be named as an additional insured in all policies 
required to be maintained hereunder with the exception of the Worker's compensation and professional 
liability insurance.   
 

ARTICLE 12 
CORRECTION OF WORK AND WARRANTY 

 
  12.1 The Contractor shall, within three (3) business days of written notice from Owner or 
Owner’s Representative, commence and diligently and continuously proceed to correct any Repair Work 
that fails to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and unconditionally guarantees and 
warrants that it shall correct any defects due to faulty materials, equipment, and/or workmanship which 
appear within a period of one (1) year from the date the City of Miami Spring’s final inspection 
approval. The provisions of this Article 12 apply to work done by Contractor's subcontractors, as well as 
to work done by the Contractor.  This warranty is not in lieu of but is in addition to the Manufacturers’ 
Warranties and any other warranties, express or implied, which may be provided by law.   
 
 12.2 The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such defective Repair Work.  This 
obligation shall survive termination of this Agreement.  If Contractor should default in the performance 
of any of its warranty obligations, it shall be responsible for all damages, fees or costs incurred by the 
Owner in enforcing the provisions of this Article, including, but not limited to, all attorney’s fees, 
engineering and consulting fees or other expenses incurred.  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, if any warranty repairs are not performed within the specified time, emergency repairs 
performed by others shall not void the warranty and the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for all 
costs incurred in connection with the performance of such repairs. 
 
 12.3 Nothing contained in this Article 12 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation 
with respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents or 
law.  The establishment of the time period specified above relates only to the specific obligation of the 
Contractor to correct the Repair Work, and has no relationship to the time within which its obligation to 
comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced. 
 

ARTICLE 13 
 SHOP DRAWINGS 
 

13.1 The Contractor shall review, approve and submit to the Architect, Engineer, Owner and 
Owner’s Representative for review and approval drawings, product data, samples and similar submittals, 
with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Repair Work.  13.2By 
approving and submitting shop drawings, product data, samples and similar submittals, the Contractor 
represents that it has determined and verified materials, estimated field measurements and field 
construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and has checked and coordinated the information 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 12 of 18 

contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Repair Work and of the Contract 
Documents. 
 

13.2 The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for deviations from requirements of 
the Contract Documents by the Architect, Engineer, or Owner’s Representative’s approval of shop 
drawings, product data, samples or similar submittals.    

 
ARTICLE 14 

TERMINATION BY THE CITY 
 
 14.1  If either the Architect, Engineer and/or Contractor does not satisfy the conditions and 
obligations imposed by the Contract Documents, or if any of them makes a general assignment for the 
benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver is appointed on account of its insolvency, or if it persistently or 
repeatedly refuses or fails to supply properly skilled workers, or proper materials in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, or if Contractor fails to make prompt payment to subcontractors or for materials or 
labor, or disregard laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having 
jurisdiction, or otherwise is guilty of a violation of any provision of the Contract Documents, then the 
City, may, without prejudice to any right or remedy and after giving the Architect, Engineer and 
Contractor forty-eight (48) hours written notice and one last opportunity to cure, take possession of the 
site and materials and finish the Repair Work by whatever method the Owner deems expedient and/or 
terminate this Agreement in whole or part.  The party or parties in default shall be responsible for all 
costs incurred by Owner and Owner’s Representative in completing the Design Services and/or Repair 
Work. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 
TRANSFER OF LIEN 

 
 15.1 In the event any liens should be filed against the Property by any subcontractors or 
material suppliers, in connection with labor or services performed, the materials incorporated into or 
delivered to the Property, Contractor shall indemnify and hold City and Curtiss Mansion harmless 
against all such liens and suits or other proceedings pertaining thereto including any and all costs and 
attorneys' fees, at both the trial and appellate level.  If any such liens are filed then Contractor must 
transfer such lien within five (5) business days of the filing of the lien by, (A) depositing in the office of 
the Clerk of the Circuit Court an amount sufficient to transfer said lien, or (B) by filing with the Clerk's 
office a bond executed by a surety licensed to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 713.24, Florida Statutes, and its successors.    
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

16.1 The Architect, Engineer and Contractor each acknowledge that the Florida Doctrine of 
Sovereign Immunity bars all claims by Architect, Engineer and Contractor against the Owner other than 
claims arising out of this Agreement. Specifically, except as provided in Fla. Stat. §768.28, the Architect, 
Engineer and Contractor acknowledges that it cannot and will not assert any claims against the Owner, unless 
the claim is based upon a breach by the Owner of this Agreement.    



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 13 of 18 

 
 

 
 ARTICLE 17 
 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
 

17.1 The Contract Documents shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Florida.  Any legal proceeding arising from the Contract Documents shall be brought only in a 
court of competent jurisdiction in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 
 ARTICLE 18 
 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 

18.1 The Parties each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto and to the partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other 
party in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.  No 
party to this Agreement shall assign the Agreement or sublet it as a whole without the written consent of 
the other parties. 

 
 ARTICLE 19 
 MODIFICATION 
 

19.1 No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed 
by all parties hereto.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be valid unless in 
writing and signed by the party against whom it is sought to be enforced. 
 
 ARTICLE 20 
 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES 
 

20.1 The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and 
remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, 
rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 

 
     ARTICLE 21 
                                                    USE OF DOCUMENTS 

 
 21.1 Drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by the Architect and Engineer are 
instruments of  service and are for the Owner’s use solely with respect to this Project. The Architect and 
Engineer shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including the copyright. Upon 
execution of this Agreement, Architect and Engineer each respectively grants to the Owner an 
irrevocable, non-exclusive license to reproduce and use the Instruments of Service, in connection with 
the Project, including the Project’s further development, construction and maintenance by the Owner 
and others retained by the Owner for such purposes.    

 
 
 ARTICLE 22 
 SEVERABILITY AND WAIVER 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 14 of 18 

 
22.1 The partial or complete invalidity of any one or more provisions of this Agreement shall 

not affect the validity or continuing force and effect of any other provision.  The failure of either party 
hereto to insist, in any one or more instances, upon the performance of any of the terms, covenants or 
conditions of this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein, shall not be construed as a waiver or 
relinquishment of such term, covenant, condition or right as respects further performance. 

 
ARTICLE 23 

WRITTEN NOTICE 
 

23.1 Notice/Delivery Addresses.  All documents, notices and payment exchanges required to 
be exchanged under this Agreement shall be delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the 
following addresses: 
 

R.J. HEISENBOTTLE ARCHITECTS, P.A. 
2199 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, Suite 400  
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
 
With a copy to: 
Neil Robertson 
4000 Ponce de Leon Blvd, Suite 800 
Coral Gables, FL 33147 
 
DOUGLAS WOOD ASSOCIATES, INC. 
2100 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, Suite 1020  
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
 
With a copy to 
David Israel 
12555 Orange Drive, Suite 4023 
Davie, FL 33330 
 
CARIVON CONSTRUCTION CO. 
12171 SW 131st Avenue 
Miami, FL 33186 
  
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
 
Ron Gorland 
City Manager 
City of Miami Springs 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 
(305)805-5000 
 
With a copy to: 
 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 15 of 18 

Michael Kurzman, Esq.  
200 E. Broward Blvd.Suite 1900 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301: 
 
CURTISS MANSION 

 
500 Deer Run  
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

 
With a copy to: 
 
Michael Kurzman, Esq.  
200 E. Broward Blvd.Suite 1900 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 

 
 

ARTICLE 24 
 COUNTERPARTS 
 

24.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as 
if all parties hereto had signed the same document.  All such counterparts shall be construed together 
and shall constitute one instrument. 

ARTICLE 25 
CHAPTER 558 NOTICE OF CLAIM 

 
25.1 The Parties have agreed that the notice of claim requirements set forth in Chapter 558, 

Florida Statutes, do not apply to this Agreement.  However, the parties agree that pursuant to Fla. Stat. 
§558.0034, an individual employee or agent of Architect or Engineer shall not be individually liable to 
Owner for damages resulting from negligence occurring within the course and scope of this Agreement 
provided that Architect and Engineer maintain their respective professional liability insurance required 
by the Agreement.  

 
  

 
  



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 16 of 18 

ARTICLE 26 
EXHIBITS 

 
 26.1 The following exhibits whether attached hereto or not are incorporated by reference and 
are part of the Contract Documents: 

 
Exhibit “A”   Proposal   
Exhibit “B”   Plans, drawings and specifications by Architect & Engineer 
Exhibit “C”   Contractor’s Certificate of Insurance 
Exhibit “D”   Architect’s Certificate of Insurance 
Exhibit “E”   Engineer’s Certificate of Insurance 
Exhibit “F”   Protection Plan 
  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the dates 
set forth below. 

 
 

WITNESSES     R.J. HEISENBOTTLE ARCHITECTS, P.A. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ By:       
 
      Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared                                  
as                                       of R.J. HEISENBOTTLE ARCHITECTS, P.A., who, being by me first duly sworn, 
deposes and says that he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to 
me/produced                                              as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
 
[seal]             
      NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 
WITNESSES DOUGLAS WOOD ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ By:        
 
      Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ Its:       



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 17 of 18 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared                                 
as                                          of DOUGLAS WOOD ASSOCIATES, INC., who, being by me first 
duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally 
known to me/produced                                              as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]             
      NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 
 
WITNESSES CARIVON CONSTRUCTION, CO. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ By:        
 
      Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared                                 
as                                          of CARIVON CONSTRUCTION, CO., who, being by me first duly 
sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known 
to me/produced                                              as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]             
      NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
WITNESSES THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ By:        
 
      Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 



 
City_____  Contractor_____ 
Curtiss Mansion______                                                         Architect_____ 
                        Engineer____ 

Page 18 of 18 

 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared                                 
as                                          of THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, who, being by me first duly 
sworn, deposes and says that he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known 
to me/produced                                              as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]             
      NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
WITNESSES CURTISS MANSION, INC. 
 
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ By:        
 
      Print:       
___________________________________ 
Print Name__________________________ Its:       
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of June, 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared                                 
as                                          of CURTISS MANSION, INC., who, being by me first duly sworn, 
deposes and says that he/she executed the foregoing Mutual Release and that he/she is personally known to 
me/produced                                              as identification, and did/did not take an oath. 
 
[seal]             
      NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
    
 
 










	Agenda Summary - June 22, 2015
	Agenda Summary p. 2 
	Agenda Summary p. 3

	3A Yard of the Month - Odalis Martin 
	3B Promotion of Sgt.  Jimmy Deal to Lieutenant
	5A Minutes - June 8, 2015 
	8A Approval of Patterson Pope Space Saver 
	8B Approval of Howard's Ferilizer 
	8C Approval of Acushnet 
	8D Approval of Expenditure to West End Tavern 
	9A Advisory Board Appointments 
	9B Appointment to Ad Hoc Art in Public Spaces Committee 
	10A Approval of Lease Extension iwth Crown Castle Cell Tower 
	10B Approval of Second Amended Interlocal Agreement for County Solid Waste Services
	10C Approval of Superior Park System for tennis court renovations 
	10D Approval of Southern Waste Systems Contract 
	10E Approval of TaiChi and Yoga Programs 
	10F Approval of Home Delivered Meals 
	10G Continued Funding of Home Delivered Meals 
	10H Councilwoman Buckner's Request for Reimbursement 
	10I Settlement Agreement Curtiss Mansion Construction Repairs
	WHEREAS, the Contractor shall provide the construction services for the Repair Work identified herein and in Exhibit 2 attached hereto, at no cost or expense to the City and Curtiss Mansion;
	WHEREAS, as part of the construction services which the Contractor will provide for the Repair Work identified herein in Exhibit 2 hereto, the Contractor has prepared a Protection Plan (the “Protection Plan”) which is attached and incorporated hereto...
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA

	10J Multi-Party Agreement for Consturction Repairs at Curtiss Mansion
	UMULTI-PARTY AGREEMENT FOR THE DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION
	UOF THE REPAIRS TO THE CURTISS MANSION
	WHEREAS, Contractor shall provide the construction services for the Repair Work identified herein;
	W I T N E S S E T H
	UARTICLE 1
	UARTICLE 2
	UARTICLE 3
	UARTICLE 4
	UARTICLE 5
	UARTICLE 6
	UARCHITECT AND ENGINEER
	UARTICLE 7
	UARTICLE 8
	UARTICLE 9
	UARTICLE 10
	UPROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
	10.1 The Contractor shall comply with the Protection Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and shall otherwise be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Repair Work.  The Cont...
	UARTICLE 11
	UARTICLE 12
	UARTICLE 14
	UARTICLE 15
	UARTICLE 23
	24.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as if all parties hereto had signed the same document.  All such counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one instrument.
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA
	NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA

	11A Construction Materials City Code Discussion

